
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY, MARCH 19, 

2018 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, 

WEST BRANCH, IOWA 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick   leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations   

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to 

discuss any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one 

motion being made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

1. Motion to approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting March 5th 2018. 
2. Resolution 1697 – A Resolution Calling a Special Election for the Proposal to Impose a Hotel 

and Motel Tax within the City.  
3. Motion to approve the hiring of Tom Dean as a New EMS / First Responder. 
4. Motion to approve the hiring of Jamie Tucker as Temporary Parks and Recreation Program 

Assistant. 
5. Resolution 1699 – A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds. 
6. Approve Claims Report. 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 
1. Motion approving the parking lot expansion proposal – Proctor and Gamble, Lot 2, 

Proctor & Gamble Second Addition (US Venture / US Autoforce Site). 
2. Public Hearing: To Dispose of an Interest in Real Property to Croell Inc. (Croell Land 

Swap). 
3. Resolution 1696 – Resolution Approving the Disposal of Certain Real Property to 

Croell Inc.  
4. Resolution 1698 – A Resolution Approving Ten Contracts for the 2018 Hoover’s 

Hometown Days Celebration in the Amount of $18,603.35. 
5. Resolution 1695 – A Resolution Approving the Subdivider’s Agreement – Part 3B, 

Meadows Subdivision.  
6. Discussion – Regarding the Proposed Amendment to Ordinance 41.11 entitled 

Fireworks. 
7. Motion Granting the City Administrator Authority to use an amount not to exceed 

$2400.00 from budget line “consultant and professional services” for the purposes 
of Grant Writing. 

 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes 

are not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               March 5, 2018  
Council Chambers                                                                                                      7:00 p.m. 

  
Mayor Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:13 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin invited the 

Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: 

Council members:  Colton Miller, Nick Goodweiler, Jodee Stoolman, Jordan Ellyson and Brian Pierce were 

present.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff: City Administrator Redmond Jones, 

Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Park & 

Recreation Director Melissa Russell, Public Works Director Matt Goodale, Police Chief Mike Horihan and Police 

Sgt. John Hanna. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

None. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 
Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting February 20, 2018. 

Motion to Approve the Liquor License Renewal for “Casey’s General Store #3463, located a 615 S. Downey 

Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358.   

Motion to Approve the Quote by LL Pelling for Spot Repairs and Total Sealcoating of the Block between 4th 

and 5th on East College Street.   

Resolution 1690 – Approving the Quote and Contract for Tank Cleaning Services. 

Motion to Approve Agreement with Kinder Morgan Cochin LLC for construction of the Cubby Park 

Improvements. 

Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
 
EXPENDITURES     3/5/2018  
 
ACTION SEWER & SEPTIC SERV    SEWER MAINTENANCE    1,334.00  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.     BOOKS      1,189.59  
BEST BUY BUSINESS ADVANTAG    USB DRIVES     108.90  
BWC EXCAVATING LC     315 MAIN ST WATER MAIN IMP    8,472.95  
CEDAR RAPIDS PHOTO COPY INC    COPIER MAINTENANCE    115.72  
CHIEF SUPPLY CORPORATION    UNIFORMS     25.75  
DEMCO      BOOKS, PROGRAM SUPPLIES    1,197.19  
F&B COMMUNICATIONS INC    LIBRARY FIREWALL PROJECT    1,138.00  
HAWKINS INC     METERING PUMPS     3,039.53  
INTERSTATE POWER SYSTEMS INC   GENERATOR INSPECTION/TEST    828.47  
IOWA ASSN. MUN. UTILITIES    MEMBERSHIP DUES     701.91  
IOWA POLICE CHIEFS ASSOCIATION   MEMBERSHIP DUES     125.00  
JC CROSS CO     BLOWER      6,274.00  
KINGDOM GRAPHICS LLC    SIGNS-VEHICLES     100.00  
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    1,372.20  
LYNCH'S EXCAVATING INC    CURB STOP, REPAIR WATER MAIN   3,125.12  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC    REPAIR-CITY SHOP BLDG    2,266.07  

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

MENARDS      TOOLS      194.75  
OVERDRIVE INC     AUDI0 BOOKS     419.30  
PARKSIDE SERVICE     INNER TUBE     177.60  
PSC DISTRIBUTION     TOOLS      15.13  
QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC    LAB ANALYSIS     717.00  
QUILL CORP     SUPPLIES      320.83  
SHIMMIN, NICK     PROGRAM SUPPLIES     55.74  
SUPPLYWORKS     SUPPLIES      44.18  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    310 COL ST BRIDGE FINAL DESIGN   2,785.80  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    P & Z MEADOWS PT 3 CONCEPT REVIEW   364.94  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    315 MAIN ST WATER MAIN IMP    46.14  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    310 COL ST BRIDGE ROW ACQUISITION   1,796.30  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    P & Z KIT 23 PV SITE PLAN REVIEW   83.00  
VERIZON WIRELESS     VERIZON WIRELESS     834.46  
WEST BRANCH FORD     VEHICLE REPAIR     42.14  
 
TOTAL            39,311.71  
 
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
 
JULIA HIME     VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICES    150.00  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     21.82  
 
TOTAL            171.82  
 
PAYROLL 2-23-18           54,860.73  
 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES          94,344.26  
 
FUND TOTALS    
 
001   GENERAL FUND    21,371.66 
022   CIVIC CENTER    43.38 
031   LIBRARY    10,008.26 
110   ROAD USE TAX    18,325.14 
310   COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE   4,582.10 
315   MAIN ST WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS 8,519.09 
600   WATER FUND    14,821.04 
610   SEWER FUND    16,673.59 
 
GRAND TOTAL    94,344.26       
 

Miller questioned the quote from LL Pelling and asked Goodale what additional work was needed at East College 

Street.  Goodale explained that the quote provided in the packet was for the annual costs for year round seal 

coating and that the staff worksheet was incorrect.  Goodale said the quote was not for East College Street. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, 

Stoolman, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING/NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Resolution 1690 – Approving a contract addendum with Fehr Graham for attending meetings related to Cubby 

Park Improvements during construction./Move to action. 

Pierce asked if meetings were included in the original contract and why this addendum was needed.  Jones 

reminded the Council that at a previous Council meeting, resident questions were not able to be answered due to 

the absence of the firm’s engineer.  Council had directed staff to require the engineer to be present at all future 

meetings to be available for any questions.  Nate Kass, Project Engineer for Fehr Graham was present and 

explained that the original engineering contract had a certain number of meetings included which have been 

exceeded.  This addendum is confirm his company to bill for the extra attendance to meetings. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1690.  AYES:  Stoolman, Goodweiler, 

Ellyson, Miller, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   



 

 

 

Motion to Approve Payment of $1,212.50 for Engineering Services for Hoover Trail Pedestrian Bridge 

Consultation./Move to action. 

Jones explained that this invoice was for services performed by Veenstra & Kimm to assist the City with 

determining where French Renneker, the original engineer for the project left off.  Veenstra & Kimm worked 

with the DNR on the permit, however it failed the DNR requirements.  Jones said the location needs to change 

or the structure needs to change. 

Motion by Pierce, second by Ellyson.  AYES:  Pierce, Ellyson, Miller, Stoolman, Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  

Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1683 – A Resolution Approving the Contract for the 2017 Hoover’s Hometown Days Celebration in 

the Amount of $25,000.00./Move to action. 

Jones said this resolution was brought back to by the request of Councilperson Pierce who was absent for the 

February 20, 2018 meeting when the issue failed due a tie.  Pierce said he brought the resolution back because 

he feels the fireworks are an important part of Hoover’s Hometown Days. 

Motion by Pierce, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1683.  AYES:  Pierce, Goodweiler, Miller.  

NAYS:  Stoolman and Ellyson.  Motion carried.   

 

Public Hearing: Regarding Adopting the City Administrator’s Recommended Budget as the Fiscal Year 2018-

2019 Annual Budget. 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:18 p.m.  There was no public comment.  Laughlin closed the public 

hearing at 7:19 p.m. 

 

Resolution 1691 – A Resolution adopting the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Annual Budget./Move to action. 

Miller stated that he would be voting ‘No’ for this year’s annual budget because he felt that staff had not 

adequately budgeted for Hoover’s Hometown Days or the storm water utility matching general funds 

agreement.   

Motion by Stoolman, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1691.  AYES:  Stoolman, Ellyson, Pierce, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  Miller.   Motion carried. 

 

Resolution 1692 – A Resolution Approving a Professional Services Agreement to perform construction 

engineering services for College Street Bridge Replacement Project./Move to action. 

Leland Belding, Roadway Designer for Veenstra & Kimm explained that this is a supplemental agreement with 

his company to perform construction engineering services for the College Street Bridge in an amount not to 

exceed $148,470.00. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1692.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Ellyson, Miller, 

Stoolman, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1694 – A Resolution Fixing a Date for Public Hearing to dispose of an interest in real property to 

Croell Inc. (Croell Land Swap)./Move to action. 

City Attorney, Kevin Olson explained that the purpose of the public hearing is a state requirement when 

disposing of city property.   

Motion by Pierce, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1694.  AYES:  Pierce, Ellyson, Miller, Stoolman, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1693 – A Resolution Approving a Variance for Street Width in the Meadows subdivision – Part 

3B./Move to action. 

Laughlin said he supports the request for a thirty one foot street and said the City Code needs to be updated to 

allow that width.  Miller requested the Council review The Meadows original design for future phases of the 

development and said this will be a busy street as it will be the only one that connects with Main Street.  Miller 

said he supports the thirty one foot width but suggested no parking on either side.  Olson said he was working 



 

 

on an ordinance change to address street widths and would have something for the Planning & Zoning 

Commission soon.  Olson also said that parking would be addressed in the Code as well for this street at a later 

date. 

 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1693.  AYES:  Stoolman, Pierce, Goodweiler, 

Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
Jones reported on a recent phone conference with Gross-Wen Technologies and said site visits were being 

planned.  Jones also said that city staff and the fire department volunteers participated in a diversity training last 

month with approximately 85% attending.  Jones said the training was recorded and available for those who 

were unable to attend. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Olson reported that the state backfill was in jeopardy of being eliminated and recommended that Council 

contact their local legislatures.  Olson said the backfill plays an important role in the City’s annual budget.  

Olson also said that he didn’t have an update on Casey’s at this time due to scheduling conflicts with Casey’s.  

He also said he was working on an ordinance change for street widths as well as updating the Urban Renewal 

Plan. 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

Laughlin said a meeting is scheduled for Thursday, March 8, 2018 in the Council Chambers to discuss how to 

grow West Branch.  He invited all interested individuals to attend. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Miller, second by Pierce.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting adjourned 

at 8:13 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

                 _________________________________________ 

                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1697 – A Resolution Calling a Special Election for the 

Proposal to Impose a Hotel and Motel Tax within the City. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  March 13, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

This resolution is a follow-up to the City Council’s direction to pursue a special election 

instead of waiting for November elections.  This resolution also provides in italics the 

ballot language proposed to be presented to West Branch Voters Tuesday, May 1st 2018.  

This tax would be imposed on any hotel, motel, inn, public lodging house, rooming 

house, mobile home, house boat which is tangible personal property or tourist court, or in 

any place where sleeping accommodations are furnished to transient guest for rent / rate; 

whether with or without meals. 

The tax will not be imposed on sleeping rooms in dormitories, memorial unions at all 

universities and colleges; and guests of religious institutions if the property is exempt 

under section 427.1, subsection 8 of the Code of Iowa, and the purpose of renting is to be 

proved a place for a religious retreat of function and not a place for rate paying transient 

guests generally. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1697 

 

RESOLUTION CALLING A SPECIAL ELECTION FOR THE PROPOSAL TO 

IMPOSE A HOTEL AND MOTEL TAX WITHIN THE CITY. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa, proposes to impose by ordinance a 

hotel and motel tax within the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 423A.4 of the Code of Iowa provides that before the City 

Council may institute proceedings for the imposition of such a tax, it shall call a special 

election to vote upon the proposition of imposing the tax in accordance with the 

provisions of the statute; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Times, is a legal newspaper, printed wholly in 

English language, as defined by Section 618.3 of the Code of Iowa, and is published and 

of general circulation within the City. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa, as follows: 

 

 Section 1. That there is hereby called a special City Election on Tuesday, the 

1st day of May, 2018, at which election there shall be submitted to the registered voters 

the following question” 

 

“SHALL THE FOLLOWING PUBLIC MEASURE BE ADOPTED? 

 

 Shall the City of West Branch, Iowa be authorized to impose by Ordinance a Local 

Hotel and Motel Tax at a rate of seven percent (7%), effective (Either July 1, 2018 or 

January 1, 2019), with at least fifty percent (50%) of the revenues derived from the Local 

Hotel and Motel Tax to be used for the promotion and encouragement of tourist and 

convention business in the City and surrounding areas; and the remaining revenues 

derived from the Local Hotel and Motel Tax to be used for all other purposes permitted 

pursuant to Chapter 423A of the Code of Iowa?” 

 

 Section 2. That the voting place or places for the election, and the hours the 

polls shall be opened and closed shall be set out in the notice of election, such notice to be 

prepared and approved by the County Commissioner of Elections. 

 

 Section 3. That the form of ballot to be used at the election shall be of the type 

authorized by the Code of Iowa that will permit the use of electronic counters and will be 

in substantially the form set forth in the Notice of Election.  That if more than one public 

measure shall be submitted to the electors at the time of the election, all such measures 

shall be printed upon one ballot. 

 



 

 

 Section 4. That the Election Board for the voting precinct or precincts shall be 

appointed by the County Commissioner of Elections, not less than 15 days before the date 

of said election. 

 

 Section 5. That the Auditor of Cedar County, Iowa, being the County 

Commissioner of Elections, is hereby directed to publish notice of the election once in the 

“West Branch Times”, being a local newspaper, printed wholly in the English language, as 

defined by Section 618.3 of the Code of Iowa, published in said County and of general 

circulation therein, the publication to be not less than four nor more than twenty days prior 

to the date of the election. 

 

 Section 6. That the County Commissioner of Elections shall cause to be 

prepared all such ballots and election registers and other supplies as may be necessary for 

the proper and legal conduct of said election. 

 

 Section 7. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this 

Resolution in the office of the County Commissioner of Elections, which filing shall also 

constitute the “written notice” to the County Commissioner of Elections of the election 

date required to be given by the governing body under the provisions of Chapter 47 of the 

Code of Iowa. 

 

  Passed and approved this 19th day of March, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to approve the hiring of Tom Dean a new EMS / First 

Responder. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Click here to enter text. 

DATE:  March 13, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 
 

Motion to approve appointment of Tom Dean to the West Branch Fire Department as a 

medical responder.  Approved by the WBFD on February 21, 2018. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of hiring Jamie Tucker as Temporary Parks and 

Recreation Program Assistant. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  March 9, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

There were three candidates interviewed for the Temporary Program Assistant Position.  It 

is staff recommendation to hire Jamie Tucker for the position of Temporary Program 

Assistant.  She has been involved in multiple athletic programs. She has extensive 

knowledge working with youth and will be a great asset to the Parks and Recreation 

program. 

 

Jamie is available to start working minimal hours in March.  She will assist with the 

organization and coordination of summer t ball, baseball, and softball programs and with 

other programs. 

 

 

Setting Salary at $12.50 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve hiring Jamie Tucker as Temporary Program 

Assistant  

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 4 



 

 

  
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1699 – A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  March 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

These are fund transfers to fund capital projects and close capital projects.  Items that 

should be considered routine.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 5 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1699 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF FUNDS 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa that the City 

Clerk is hereby authorized to transfer funds as follows: 

 

T/O Road Use Tax    (110) $101,931.89 (To fund 4th St 

Improvement T/O Sewer Fund    (610) $ 14,492.50 Project 

and close project  

T/I 4th St Improvement Project  (306) $116,424.39 fund) 

 

T/O Sanitary Sewer I & I Grout  (316) $0.11  (To close project 

fund) 

T/I Sewer Fund    (610) $0.11 

 

T/O Park Improvements-Pedersen Valley (308) $ 160.16 (To complete funding 

T/I Phase I Park Improvements  (309) $ 160.16 and close Phase I 

project) 

 

 

 

*     *     *     * 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of March, 2018. 

 

        

 

 

___________________________ 

           Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Officer 

DATE:  March 13, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

These are routine expenditure that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 6 



 

 

   
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Motion Approving the parking lot expansion proposal – Proctor and 

Gamble, Lot 2, Proctor & Gamble Second Addition (US Venture / 

US Autoforce Site.) 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  March 13, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 
 
The Site Plan for Lot2, Proctor & Gamble Second Addition is for the addition of 50 parking 

spots to the existing west parking lot.  The existing parking lot has a driveway to Council 

Street, and the proposed parking spots will be added on both sides of the driveway.  The 

proposed parking will require the addition of two additional handicap parking spaces for a 

total of four handicap parking spaces for the entire parking lot.  The proposed handicap 

parking will have ADA access through the parking lot.  

 

There is no change to the storm water management because the increase in hard surfacing 

is 0.5%.  The storm water increase would be minor. There is no plan to increase lighting 

or landscaping. The lighting and landscaping will match the existing parking lot to the 

north.  The building is for sale, so the additional parking is proposed to meet future owners 

parking requirements.  The City Standards call for 6 inches of asphalt, but the asphalt is for 

parking only.  Iowa Statewide Urban Design and Specifications has a requirement of 4 

inches of asphalt under the proposed traffic load.   

 

 

 

  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: To Dispose of an Interest in Real Property to Croell 

Inc. (Croell Land Swap). 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  March 13, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 
 
 

The property was purchased in 1989 by Croell Redi-mix, a cement company with more 

than 130 locations in six states, and employs its own crew that not only pours foundations 

and walls but constructs plants.  Croell Redi-mix operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 

East Green Street which is ranged north to south between Main Street and College Street.  

While planning for a plant expansion at that site, the city proposed land swap.  Instead of 

having this industrial use expand its operations in this transitional area that exist between 

a celebrated historic downtown with 14 buildings on the National Historic Register, and a 

well-established neighborhood known for its mature tree line and eclectic housing; the 

city pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of industrial park property for the 

aforementioned 4 acre site.  Conceptual discussions with neighboring land and business 

owners are examining redeveloping this land / properties to enhance a potential mixed-

use project.  

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open Public Hearing / Close Public Hearing 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1696 – Resolution Approving the Disposal of Certain 

Real Property to Croell Redi-Mix, Inc.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  March 13, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

The property was purchased in 1989 by Croell Redi-mix, a cement company with more 

than 130 locations in six states, and employs its own crew that not only pours foundations 

and walls but constructs plants.  Croell Redi-mix operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 

East Green Street which is ranged north to south between Main Street and College Street.  

While planning for a plant expansion at that site, the city proposed land swap.  Instead of 

having this industrial use expand its operations in this transitional area that exist between 

a celebrated historic downtown with 14 buildings on the National Historic Register, and a 

well-established neighborhood known for its mature tree line and eclectic housing; the 

city pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of industrial park property for the 

aforementioned 4 acre site.  Conceptual discussions with neighboring land and business 

owners are examining redeveloping this land / properties to enhance a potential mixed-

use project.  

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1696 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DISPOSAL OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

TO CROELL REDI-MIX, INC. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and Croell Redi-Mix, Inc (“Croell) previously entered into 

that certain Land Exchange Agreement (the “Agreement”), said Agreement being 

recorded in Book 1329 at page 133, Records of the Cedar County Recorder’s Office; and 

 

 WHEREAS, as part of the Agreement, the City will convey Lot B of Lot 4, 

Rummells Commercial Subdivision, to Croell; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in exchange for the City’s conveyance to Croell, Croell will convey 

its present property adjacent to Main Street to the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 364 of the Code of Iowa and the Title Standards of the 

Iowa State Bar Association require a public hearing be held prior to a city conveying 

property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said public hearing has been held pursuant to the published notice 

of the same. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the disposal of said Lot B of Lot 4, Rummells 

Commercial Subdivision to Croell pursuant to the Agreement is hereby approved.  

Further, the City Clerk is directed to record a copy of this Resolution, along with the 

affidavit of publication, in the Office of the Cedar County Recorder’s Office. 

 

   Passed and approved this 19th day of March, 2018. 

 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1698 - A Resolution Approving Ten Contracts for the 

2018 Hoover’s Hometown Days Celebration in the Amount of 

$18,603.35.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  March 14, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter a date.  
 Click here to enter text. 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Hoover’s Hometown Days Contracts 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Non Consent Item 4 

BACKGROUND:  

Midwest Inflatables will bring, set up, tear down, and staff 10 activities on August 4th, 2018 for a 

total fee of $11,250.  The inflatables will be open from 11am-8pm.  IC balloons will provide 

balloon animals between the hours of 2pm and 5pm on August 4, 2018 for a fee of $525.  Prosound 

of Iowa City will provide DJ services on August 3, 2018 between 5pm and 8pm on Village Green 

for a fee of $400.  The DJ service will assist in providing a festive atmosphere for the kick off 

evening of Hoover’s Hometown Days. 
 
Hanson Shows will perform at 12:30pm on Main Street on August 4, 2018.  They are a family 

friendly show that will feature juggling and unicycling.  There cost will be $500 for a 45-minute 

performance.  Torrey Roster-RU Racing will bring a simulator on August 4, 2018 for 4 hours at a 

cost of $800. This will be located on Main Street.  Pony Go Round will be back on August 4, 2018 

from 12:00pm-4:00pm giving pony rides.  The cost for Pony Go Round is $1200. 
 
Big 10 Rental will deliver, set up and take down a 20x40 tent on Main Street.  They will also 

deliver tables and chairs for the food tent and entertainment on Main Street.  The cost of Big 10 

rentals is $1219.35. Port O Jonny will deliver the 8 units and 4 handwashing stations for a fee of 

$784.  Yotty’s golf carts will be used for shuttle service as well as assistance during the parade.  

The fee for 10 golf carts is $1000. 
 
Community Showcase Rental will set up and remove the stage located near the Presidential Library 

for $925.   It will be used for the band before and during the fireworks.   
 
The total for the contracts presented today are $18,603.35. 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1698 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING TEN CONTRACTS FOR THE 2018 HOOVER’S 

HOMETOWN DAYS CELEBRATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $18,603.35. 
 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s premier event of the year is Hoover’s Hometown Days; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2017-2018 budget for Hoover’s Hometown Days includes 

funding for entertainment and services for the event; and  

 

 WHEREAS, three organizations have submitted proposed service agreements in the 

amount of $18,603.35 to provide musical entertainment, children’s activities, performance 

stages, golf carts and restroom facility services for use during the event; and  

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreements.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned agreements are hereby approved.  Further, the Mayor is 

directed to execute the agreements on behalf of the City.   

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 19th day of March, 2018. 

   

  

      

_________________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1695 – A Resolution Approving the Subdivider’s 

Agreement – Part 3B, Meadows Subdivision. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  March 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:   

 

The City Attorney has drafted a Subdivider’s Agreement which outlines the responsibilities 

of KLM with respect to said Meadows Subdivision – Part 3B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval of the Resolution 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:       

 Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1695 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SUBDIVIDER’S AGREEMENT WITH KLM 

INVESTMENTS, INC., IN CONNECTION WITH THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION – 

PART 3B, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 

 

WHEREAS, KLM Investments, Inc. (“KLM”), is the owner of that certain parcel of real 

estate generally referred to as the Meadows Subdivision; and 

 

 WHEREAS, KLM has submitted a preliminary plat for the Meadows Subdivision 

– Part 3B, West Branch, Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with the City’s subdivision regulations, KLM, as part 

of plat approval, will need to construct certain municipal improvements, namely sanitary 

sewers, water mains, storm sewers, sump-pump line, and street lighting; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Attorney has drafted a Subdivider’s Agreement which 

outlines the responsibilities of KLM with respect to said Meadows Subdivision – Part 3B; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to formally approve said 

Agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned Subdivider’s Agreement be and the same is 

hereby approved.  Further, the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute said 

Subdivider’s Agreement on behalf of the City.  Further, the City Clerk shall record said 

Subdivider’s Agreement, along with the required documents outlined in Chapter 354 of 

the Code of Iowa when the final plat of the Meadows Subdivision – Part 3B has been 

formally approved. 

 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 19th day of March, 2018. 

       

  ______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 



 

 

CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA/SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENT  

THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION, PART 3B, WEST BRANCH, IOWA  
 
This Agreement is made by and between MEADOWS DEVELOPMENT INC., an Iowa 

corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "Subdivider", and the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, a Municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "City". 

 

WITNESSETH 
 

SECTION 1. MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION AND 

INSTALLATION OF MUNICIPAL INTROVEMENTS. 

In consideration of the city approving the plat and subdivision of real estate known and 

designated as The Meadows Subdivision, Parts 3A, West Branch, Iowa, prior to 

Subdivider's installation and construction of the required municipal improvements, 

Subdivider shall make escrow provisions as provided herein. Municipal improvements 

shall include a 31-foot PCC street known as Dawson Drive, sanitary sewers, water mains, 

storm sewers, sump-pump line, and street lighting. Said municipal improvements shall be 

constructed and installed in accordance with construction plans and specifications 

approved by the City Engineer of the City who shall have the right to make or authorize 

occasional inspections of the work in progress. Said inspections shall not relieve or 

release the Subdivider from the responsibility to construct the municipal improvements 

in accordance with the approved plans and specifications. 
 
SECTION 2. SIDEWALKS. 

The Subdivider agrees that no later than three (3) years from the date of the City's 

Resolution approving the Final Plat of The Meadows Subdivision, Part 3B, West Branch, 

Iowa, or upon seventy-five percent (75%) of the development of the lots therein, 

whichever occurs first, to install sidewalks abutting each lot which shall be at least five 

(5) feet wide and constructed according to the plans and specifications as approved by 

the City Engineer. In the event that all of the sidewalks are not installed within said three 

(3) year period, the City may order the construction of sidewalks to be made on one side 

of each street to ensure pedestrian access for property owners. However, all sidewalks 

must be constructed within five (5) years of the approval of the Final Plat for this 

subdivision. The escrow provision need not include the sidewalk installation, however, 

the same shall remain a lien against each lot until accepted and released by the City. 
 
SECTION 3. ESCROW MONIES 

The Subdivider shall deposit with the City Clerk in escrow an amount equal to the 

estimated cost of constructing the municipal improvements plus 10% thereof as 

determined by the City Engineer and said deposit shall be referred to as "Municipal 

Improvements Escrow". The escrow deposit shall be in the form of cash, bank check that 

will be cashed, bond or irrevocable letter of credit, all as approved by the City Attorney. 
 
SECTION 4. USE OF ESCROW MONIES 

If, after one year from the date of the City's resolution approving the preliminary plat of 

the subdivision, the municipal improvements have not been constructed and installed for 

the subdivision, then City may use and/or make demand upon the municipal 

improvements escrow to construct and install said municipal improvements. The City 

shall release any bond or letter of credit or refund to the Subdivider any portions of or 



 

 

any excess escrow monies not used by the City after construction, installation and 

acceptance of all of the municipal improvements. Any cash or check held in escrow shall 

be released as needed for payment of the costs of the improvements. 

In addition, the City may make use of any of the proceeds of the security provided by 

Subdivider in order to enforce the erosion control requirements pursuant to Section 

170.15(15) of the West Branch Code of Ordinances. 
 
SECTION 5. WAIVER 

In the event the Subdivider shall sell or convey or make application for a building permit 

on any lot or lots in the subdivision without having first constructed and installed all the 

municipal improvements for the subdivision, then the City shall have the right to proceed 

therewith as provided in Section 3 above. 
 
SECTION 6. LIEN 

The costs of the construction and installation of the municipal improvements shall be a 

lien and charged against all lots in said subdivision and need not meet the requirements 

of notice, benefit or value as provided for by the Code of Iowa for assessing said 

municipal improvements which may exceed the municipal improvements escrow. 
 
SECTION 7. RELEASE 

The City agrees that when all municipal improvements have been constructed and 

installed for the subdivision, to the satisfaction of the City and upon acceptance by 

resolution, to furnish the Subdivider a good and sufficient Release for filing in the office 

of the County Recorder so that this Agreement will not constitute a cloud upon the title. 
 
SECTION 8. PUBLIC SERVICES. 

Subdivider agrees that public services including, street maintenance, snow plowing, 

water and sanitary sewer service, will not be provided in said subdivision until the 

municipal improvements have been constructed, installed and accepted by the City. 
 
SECTION 9. PAYMENT OF SANITARY SEWER CONNECTION FEE. 

Prior to the approval of the final plat of the Meadows Subdivision Part 3B, the 

Subdivider shall pay to the City the sum of $750.00 as payment of the Sanitary Sewer 

Connection Fee. 
 
SECTION 10. ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS. 

The parties expressly agree that the lots in this subdivision are zoned as follows: 

Lots 31-33 RB-1 
  
SECTION 11. STORM WATER EROSION CONTROL AND TOPSOIL 

REQUIREMENTS. 

Subdivider or its assigns or successors in interest shall be responsible for the 

maintenance of appropriate erosion control measures during construction of the 

infrastructure and during building of any structures in the Subdivision. In addition, the 

Subdivider shall be responsible for the placement of 4-inches of topsoil or allowed 

substitute upon each lot after the structures have been constructed prior to the issuance of 

any occupancy permit for said structure.  These topsoil requirements shall also apply to 

Outlot A prior to conveying said Outlot to the City. 

 

 



 

 

SECTION 12.  MAIN STREET ACCESS PROHIBITED.  

 None of the lots shown on the plat shall have any access directly onto Main 

Street. 
 

SECTION 13. ASSIGNS AND SUCCESSORS 
This agreement, including specifically the requirement referred to in Section 13, 

shall be binding upon the parties, their assigns or successors in interest and it is 
understood that the City, at its option, may contract for the construction and installation 
of the municipal improvements as provided above. 

Dated this ____ day of _______________, 2018. 

 

CITY: ____________________________ DEVELOPER: _______________________ 
Roger Laughlin, Mayor    Brad Larson, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF CEDAR, ss: 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of 
__________________, 2018, by Roger Laughlin and Redmond Jones II, as Mayor and 
City Clerk respectively of the City of West Branch, Iowa. 
 
 
       
 _____________________________ 
 Notary Public 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF CEDAR, ss: 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of 
____________________, 2018, by Brad Larson, as President of Meadows Development, Inc. 
 
 
       
 _____________________________ 
  Notary Public 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

  
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion – Regarding the Proposed Amendment to Ordinance 

41.11 entitled Fireworks. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Police Chief Mike Horihan 

DATE:  March 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:   A brief staff presentation is anticipated to be delivered.  The topic of 

fines and penalties is expected to be presented for City Council feedback.  

 

Attached to this item is a draft which bans use of Fireworks, except for groups with permits 

from the City. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Discussion Look for Direction Regarding Next Steps 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

Like to change To:  
 

 
ORDINANCE XXXX 

 

ORDINANCE REGULATING THE USE OF FIREWORKS WITHIN THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Iowa General Assembly recently passed legislation to allow for 

the sale of fireworks in the State of Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said state law allows cities to regulate the use or explosion of 

fireworks within its corporate limits; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable 

to pass legislation regulating the use or explosion of fireworks within the City. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. Amendment.  Section 41.11 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby deleted in its 

entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

“SECTION 41.11.  FIREWORKS REGULATION. 

The sale, use or exploding of fireworks within the City are subject to the 

following: 

1.   Definition.  The term “fireworks” includes any explosive composition, or 

combination of explosive substances, or articles prepared for the purpose of producing a 

visible or audible effect by combustion, explosion, deflagration or detonation, and 

specifically includes blank cartridges, firecrackers, torpedoes, skyrockets, roman candles, 

or other fireworks of like construction and any fireworks containing any explosive or 

flammable compound, or other device containing any explosive substance. 

 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2) 

2.   Regulations.  It is unlawful to use or explode any fireworks; provided the City may, 

upon application in writing, grant a permit for the display of fireworks by a City agency, 

fair associations, amusement parks and other organizations or groups of individuals 

approved by City authorities when such fireworks display will be handled by a competent 

operator.  No permit shall be granted hereunder unless the operator or sponsoring 

organization has filed with the City evidence of insurance in the following amounts: 

   A.   Personal Injury:   $  250,000.00 per person. 

   B.   Property Damage:   $ 50,000.00. 

   C.   Total Exposure:   $1,000,000.00. 

 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2) 

3.   Exceptions.  This section does not prohibit the sale by a resident, dealer, manufacturer 

or jobber of such fireworks as are not prohibited; or the sale of any kind of fireworks if 

DRAFT 



 

 

they are to be shipped out of State; or the sale or use of blank cartridges for a show or 

theatre, or for signal purposes in athletic sports or by railroads or trucks for signal 

purposes, or by a recognized military organization.  This section does not apply to any 

substance or composition prepared and sold for medicinal or fumigation purposes. 

 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 727.2)” 

Section 2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for 

and in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

Section 3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be 

adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity 

of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid 

or unconstitutional. 

 

Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its 

passage, approval and publication as required by law. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this ________ day of _________________, 2018. 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 19, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion Granting the City Administrator Authority to use an amount 

not to exceed $2400.00 from budget line “consultant and 

professional services” for the purposes of Grant Writing. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator / Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  December 22, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND: East Central Intergovernmental Association (ECIA) serves 

municipalities, community organizations and other non‐profit groups in the five‐county 

region of Cedar, Clinton, Delaware, Dubuque, and Jackson Counties. ECIA provides 

technical assistance and special project support in areas such as Community Development, 

Economic Development, Housing Assistance, Employment and Training, Transit, 

Transportation and Planning, and Grant Writing.  This item proposes to aggressively seek 

grants that may enhance our current Cubby Park and other projects related to the Council’s 

List of Goals.  The following list are a few of the grants that could be considered: 
 
Minnesota Twins Community Fund – Fields for Kids 

McDonough Foundation 

Union Pacific – Community Based Grant Program 

Baseball Tomorrow Fund 

US Bank – Charitable Giving 

State Historical Society of Iowa – Country School Grant Program 

State Historical Society of Iowa – Historical Resource Development Program 

Arts Grants 

 

And others… 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


